
Annual Report

2014-15

Building SkillS 
FutuRe WoRkFoRce



the construction industry training Board 
(citB) is a body corporate established 
at the request of the SA Building 
and construction industry, through 
enactment of the Construction Industry 
Training Fund (CITF) Act  
(1993) by the South Australian 
Parliament, and came into existence on 1 
September of that year. 

The cover page of the Act  
explains its purpose as:

An Act to establish a fund to 
be used to improve the quality 
of training in the building and 
construction industry; to establish 
the Construction Industry Training 
Board to administer the fund and 
coordinate appropriate training; 
to provide for the imposition and 
collection of a levy for the purposes  
of the fund, and other purposes.

the citB was created as an industry 
owned and led entity in line with similar 
arrangements in the other jurisdictions 
other than nSW & Victoria. the training 
funds address the unique needs of the 
industry arising from its cyclic nature, 
project-based operations and the sub-
contracting of skilled labour. 

The Act specifies CITB’s functions 
which include:

To act as a principal adviser to the 
relevant State and Federal Ministers 
on any matter relating to training 
in the building and construction 
industry.

To administer the Construction 
Industry Training Fund (the Fund).

To prepare training plans in 
accordance with the Act.

To generally coordinate training and 
personnel development within the 
building and construction industry.

To promote increased productivity, 
career opportunities, personal 
satisfaction and OH&S within the 
industry through training. 

To review and evaluate employment 
related training programs to ensure 
that they meet training and skill 
requirements of the industry.

To ensure a more equitable 
distribution of effort amongst 
employers in relation to employment-
related training in the building and 
construction industry.

To initiate, carry out, support or 
promote research into the training 
and personnel needs of the building 

and construction industry.

To liaise with educational, 
professional and training bodies (in 
either the public or private sectors) 
in relation to training and personnel 
development within the building and 
construction industry.

To promote, undertake, or support 
programs designed to facilitate the 
international exchange of information 
relevant to training or personnel 
development within the building and 
construction industry.

Functions

Purpose  OUR VisiOn 

OUR VALUEs 

Quality of service 

integrity

leadership and innovation

teamwork

open communication

customer satisfaction

OUR MissiOn 

to support the South Australian 
building and construction industry 

by providing leadership in  
training and skills development  

for its workforce

the South Australian building and 
construction industry is characterised 

by a training culture across all sectors of 
the industry that fosters and supports:

A highly skilled, productive workforce

High standards of health and safety

career opportunity 

Purpose, Vision 
and Values

the construction industry training Board (citB) is a body corporate established 
at the request of the SA Building and construction industry, through enactment of 
the construction industry training Fund (citF) Act (1993) by the South Australian 
Parliament, and came into existence on 1 September 1993. 

the cover page of the Act explains its purpose as:

An Act to establish a fund to be used to improve the quality of training in the building 
and construction industry; to establish the Construction Industry Training Board to 
administer the fund and coordinate appropriate training; to provide for the imposition 
and collection of a levy for the purposes of the fund, and other purposes.

the citB was created as an industry owned and led entity in line with similar 
arrangements in the other smaller states of Australia.  the training funds address the 
unique needs of the industry arising from its cyclic nature, project-based operations 
and the sub-contracting of skilled labour. 



The Act specifies CITB’s functions which include:

•	 to act as a principal adviser to the relevant State and Federal Ministers on any matter 
relating to training in the building and construction industry.

•	 to administer the construction industry training Fund (the Fund).

•	 to prepare training plans in accordance with the Act.

•	 to generally coordinate training and personnel development within the building and 
construction industry.

•	 to promote increased productivity, career opportunities, personal satisfaction and 
oH&S within the industry through training. 

•	 to review and evaluate employment related training programs to ensure that they meet 
training and skill requirements of the industry.

•	 to ensure a more equitable distribution of effort amongst employers in relation to 
employment-related training in the building and construction industry.

•	 to initiate, carry out, support or promote research into the training and personnel 
needs of the building and construction industry.

•	 to liaise with educational, professional and training bodies (in either the public or 
private sectors) in relation to training and personnel development within the building 
and construction industry.

•	 to promote, undertake, or support programs designed to facilitate the international 
exchange of information relevant to training or personnel development within the 
building and construction industry.

Functions
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ceo’s Report /  
Presiding Member Report

Background
it is no secret that the South Australian 
building and construction industry has 
been doing it tough. that is reflected in 
subdued activity across the board, with 
some sectors ‘feeling the pinch’ more so 
than others. 

2014-15 is best characterised by the term 
‘transition’ as we deal with a changing 
environment and constrained outlook. 
the transition is influenced by the 
following factors:

•	 declining trend-line of industry 
 activity over time

•	 increased demand for apprenticeship 
support

•	 training demand addressed by 
applying accumulated reserves

•	 increased automation and streamlining 
of citB training claims management

•	 organisational re-structure to reflect 
our environment and to capitalise on 
changes to the way we do business 
and engage with our customer base

citB has carefully marshalled resources 
accumulated during the earlier boom in 
order to sustain training activity in line with 
an underlying intent in the Fund’s creation 
– to provide a measure of counter-cyclic 
influence to offset the impact of declining 
levels of activity in the industry on the 
propensity to undertake training.

overview
the citF Act defines three discrete 
industry sectors:

•	 in terms of activity and levy collections, 
the civil sector has been particularly 
hard hit since the cessation of major 
infrastructure projects.

•	 the commercial sector has remained 
stronger than anticipated, but is reflective 
of a downward trend since 2010-11. As 
work on our single largest project of all 
time, the new Royal Adelaide Hospital 
enters its final stages, net workload 
will diminish. the extent to which it is 
offset by new work is unclear. Some 
un-forecast work has returned higher net 
metrics than anticipated.

•	 the Housing sector is seeing changing 
patterns of behaviour with a noticeable 
shift away from traditional outer 
suburban single storey homes to a 
higher proportion of inner metropolitan 
low and medium rise accommodation.

this has resulted in net levy collections 
better than budgeted due largely to 
significant projects announced which had 
not been forecast (April 2014).

training activity has exhibited mixed 
signals. 

•	 Activity has diminished under the 
construction Worker program both in 
terms of numbers and expenditure. 
low cost high volume (ie big class 
sizes) courses have given way to 
smaller classes, undertaking courses of 
longer duration, more or less in line with 
our estimates. 

•	 conversely, our exposure in the 
Apprenticeship support space has 
increased, as a function of demand. 
increased cost sensitivity on the part 
of our clients and the effectiveness 
and increased reach since the advent 
of the Field officers in our operations 
has meant greater coverage of the 
apprentice population. However this is 
offset by diminished capacity on our 
part to service that demand at extant 
rates.

Forward View
•	 As mentioned in previous reports, citB 

forecasting suggests that the long 
term average activity may look very 
much like 2008 (pre-gFc) in net terms. 
our aim is to adjust training funding 
settings approximating 2009-10 levels 
(again in net terms).

•	 the citB Annual training Plan 2015-16 
reflects these assessments. 

Strategic Positioning 
Statement
the increased demand for apprenticeship 
support has forced some fundamental 
reviews on the way we operate to contain 
our exposure and manage a diminishing 
resource pool in the face of increased 
demand. We are in the classic position of 
having to do more with less.

the adoption of the new Apprentice 
/ employer support regime anchored 
with a phone-based log book App was 
flagged in 2013-14 and will come into full 
effect from 1 July 2015. it will result in 
new patterns of claim activity that we will 
monitor closely.

•	 Prior registration essential

•	 Progress monitored by Rto and citB

•	 Automated reminders

•	 90 day expiry period after the due date. 

this triggered a major review of our 
Reserves policy with the support of 
external advice. included in the advice 
is the decision to make a substantial 
provision of $1.9M in our financials. this 
has a significant impact on our ‘bottom 
line’ and Balance Sheet for the year.

the second half of the year reflected 
the commencement of transition to the 
support regime flagged in the 2015-16 
Annual training Plan, which was approved 
by the Minister on 5 June 2015. this 
includes migration to two rather than the 
previous three Apprentice support funding 
streams, at a rate more reflective of that 
which was in place in 2008-09. 
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key factors in the delivery of the 2014-15 Annual training Plan (AtP) were:

Supported 19,463 construction Worker training places with funded training 
support.

Supported 4,645 apprentices and their employers with funded training support.

Supported 1,001 students in training in the doorways2constructiontM and 
d2c Plus programs.

Returned a $3M operating deficit (of which $1.9M is a provision that has been 
brought on to the Balance Sheet) in line with the AtP and budget forecast.

Refined the Field officer client engagement program and grew the network.  
Field officers now canvassing short course needs in regional areas and brokering 
Rto delivery in addition to employer / apprentice liaison.

Began the introduction of the My Profiling on-job log book smartphone  
App and supporting processes.

Achieved My Profiling uptake of 31% in first 6 months (to end June).

Achieved a solution to the negative impact and unintended consequences 
of competency Based Wage Progression on apprentice commencements. 
this was done through facilitating collaboration with government (trainee and 
Apprenticeship Services directorate in the department of State development) 
and the support of unions and employer Associations. 

conducted a series of campaigns to promote industry careers:

•	 Opportunities	in	Construction;

 • Women

 • Mature Age skilled workers

 • Aboriginal workforce

•	 Evolution	of	a	Construction	Worker	(industry	career	pathways);

•	 Career	promotion	and	progression	through	training	and	qualification.

•	 	Branding	of	CITB	Field	Officer	car	fleet	(promoting	training	card	and	 
onsite services).

•	 	Continuation	of	Bianco	van	promotion,	highlighting	the	benefits	of	up-skilling	
and cross skilling.

•	 	Active	social	media	presence.

Achieved an unqualified report from the SA Auditor general for the 2014-15 
training year.

2014-15 Highlights

 training expenditure ($Millions)    

 levy collections ($Millions)    

 construction work done ($Millions) 

*levy collections are net of a $1.5M refund, see the notes to the Financial Statements

the Board is of the view  
that we are soundly 
positioned to address the 
training needs of the industry 
into the foreseeable future, 
with systems that will add 
value commensurate with 
the resources committed. 
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COMMERCiAL 

$6.96m

HOUsinG 

$6.22m

CiViL 

$3.75m

Short course

•	 training

•	 Upskilling

•	 Safety

•	 Licencing

•	 First	Aid

•	 WHS

•	 Construction	Skills

Apprentice

•	 Bricklayer

•	 Carpenter

•	 Civil	Construction	Worker

•	 Concreter

•	 Electrician

•	 Fire	Protection

•	 Glass	&	Glazing

•	 Painter

•	 Plasterer

•	 Plumber

•	 Refrigeration	&	Airconditioning

•	 Riggers

•	 Roof	Plumber

•	 Scaffolding

•	 Sprinkler	Fitter

•	 Wall	&	Ceiling	Liner

•	 Wall	&	Floor	Tiler
CiViL 

$2.74m

HOUsinG 

$7.03m

COMMERCiAL 

$6.96m
LEVY inCOME 

$16.72M

$

AnnuAl RePoRT 2015 98 ConSTRuCTIon InduSTRy TRAInIng BoARd



Level 1, 5 Greenhill Road 
Wayville SA 5034 
PO Box 1227 Unley SA 5061 

Telephone 08 8172 9500  
Facsimile 08 8172 9501 
email citb@citb.org.au

Website www.citb.org.au 
ABN 39 817 133 546 

letter of transmittal

  

 Level 1, 5 Greenhill Road
Wayville SA 5034
PO Box 1227 Unley SA 5061

Telephone 08 8172 9500 
Facsimile 08 8172 9501
Email citb@citb.org.au

    

Website www.citb.org.au
ABN 39 817 133 546 

30 September 2014

Hon Gail Gago, MLC
Minister for Employment, Higher Education and Skills
GPO Box 1838
ADELAIDE SA 5001

Dear Minister

On behalf of the Directors of the Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) and in accordance with 
Section 17 of the Construction Industry Training Fund Act 1993, I have pleasure in enclosing the Annual 
Report incorporating the audited financial statements of the CITB for 2013-14, for your information and 
presentation to Parliament.

The report sets out the circumstances and results of the CITB’s operations during the 2013-14 Financial 
Year. The result was a deficit of $3.02M against an expected $1.2M deficit. The deficit was funded from 
Reserves, and is largely attributable to an increase in the uptake of Apprentice Training Support as our 
communications with apprentices and their employers has been markedly improved since the engagement 
of three Field Officers.

In the near term the industry environment is such that revenue is expected to remain tight, so expenditure 
controls in the form of changes in the rate of funding per training event have been put in place.

The CITB has received an unqualified report from the Auditor General for 2013-14.

Developments in spheres other than training bear on the CITB and the manner in which it addresses 
industry need. The state of the industry largely determines demand for training and the capacity of the 
CITB to resource it.  Our successful and enduring doorways2construction ™ program is faced with a 
number of challenges ranging from industrial fallout to incongruence between VET and education 
imperatives.  These are being addressed in a structured way through our advisory committees.

While a training response in itself may not be the means by which these are resolved, CITB continues to 
draw on its industry advisory networks in order to inform and develop flexible and adaptive approaches to 
addressing our two key objectives encapsulated in our ‘by-line’; Building Skills, Future Workforce.

Yours sincerely

Gay Thompson
Presiding Member
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Annual training Report

the Annual training Plan (AtP) outlines the 
training support measures undertaken by 
the Board, and the Annual Report reflects 
the results against it.

overview 2014-15 
the major factor impacting the 2014-15 
published result is the change in the way 
in which Apprentices and their employers 
are to be funded from July 2015. 
transition began in the reporting year. 
A changed approach to our Reserves 
policy, on advice, necessitated an end of 
year adjustment such that a provision has 
been included in the Balance Sheet and a 
balancing adjustment to the expense line 
of the Profit and loss statement of $1.9M. 

increased revenue offset the impact of 
a higher than forecast expenditure on 
Apprentice training Support (AtS).  this 
is a consequence of greater demand for 
citB support and increased coverage 
generated by a combination of tight 
economic conditions and the efforts of 
the Field staff.

this aside the result is largely in line with 
expectations.

Anticipation of the trends exhibited, 
shaped the 2015/16 Annual training Plan 
which will see streamlining of Apprentice 
training Support programs and a 
reduction in the total net payment to 
ensure it is more sustainable.

Tuition Funding 

Marginally underspent as the impact of 
Fee Free training for electricians, under 
Skills for All, the State government 
Vocational training scheme which ended 
on 30 June 2015, washes out of the 
system. 

on-Job Training 

this activity represents the last year of 
the paper log book system. this line will 
migrate to the My Profiling phone-based 
log book under the 2015-16 Annual 
training Plan.

in respect of construction Worker 
training it is very difficult to gather 
accurate and reliable data on 
the demographics of employers. 
Registration of workers for citB’s 
training card is not homogenous and 
tends to take place on an as-needs 
basis. 

employment and training of 
apprentices is for the most part 
carried out by about 35% of the 
companies	in	the	industry;	most	
of which, by far, are very small 
businesses employing 1-4 people.  

2014-15 
Budget

2014-15 
Actual

gross levy Revenue 15.0M 16.72M

ATS – Apprenticeship & Traineeship Support 

tuition funding 1.0M 0.8M

on-Job funding 4.4M 7.9M

completion funding 2.5M 3.7M

Total Apprenticeship & Traineeship Support 7.8M 12.4M

CW – Construction Worker  

construction Worker expenditure 4.7M 4.5M

contingency  .5M 0.0M

Total Current worker 5.2M 4.5M

development & Innovation programs  0.2M 0.04M

Total Access & equity Program

Aboriginal Workforce program 0.2M 0.1M

d2c program 0.3M 0.3M

other Access & equity 0.1M -

Total development & Innovation Initiatives 0.6M 0.4M

 

Total Programs 13.8M 17.4M

no. of ATS and CW places

number of current Worker training places 20,000 19,463

number of apprentices supported >3,000 4,645

Note: totals appear inconsistent due to rounding
 

the table below sets out the budget and actual expenditure of the AtP by element. 

Summary statement

Completion

this activity represents the last year of 
operation of progressive completion 
funding as its objectives will be met by the 
adoption of the My Profiling system.

Smaller programs

the major line item in Access & equity  
is the doorways2construction™ 
program. it has had to counter a range 
of obstacles over the past year, all of 
which were driven by external factors. 
the most significant of these was the 

anticipated impact of competency Based 
Wage Progression adversely affecting 
the employability of graduates. this 
matter was resolved successfully through 
collaboration between industry and 
government.  d2c remains a very sought 
after option for SA secondary school 
students.

Business size by employee numbers  
2014

Business size by employee numbers 
2006-2014

 non employing   1-4 employees 

 5-19 employees  20-199 employees

 200+ employees 

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14

25000 

20000

15000

10000 

5000 

-

Companies registered with CITB

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

7000 

6000

5000

4000 

3000

2000

1000 

-

 number of companies registered with citB

  number of new companies

Registered companies Working in the SA construction 
industry 2014 n=20 735

non 
employing 
66.67%

 1-4 
employees 

25.32%

 20-199 
employees 

1.37%
 5-19 

employees 
6.62%

 200+ 
employees 

0.02%

levy collections by sector 2014-15 
($16.72M total)

direct training expenditure by sector 
2014-15 ($16.92M total)

 Housing 36.7%

  commercial 41.1%

 civil 22.2%

 Housing 42.0%

  commercial 41.6%

 civil 16.4%

levy collections by sector 2011-15

2010-11

4.55

4.31

7.25

2011-12

2.66

7.49

5.83 

2012-13

3.31

6.88

6.14

2013-14

2.76

5.17

7.21

2014-15

2.74

6.96

7.03

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

direct training expenditure by sector  
2011-15

3.06

7.54

7.33

2.81

6.91

6.70

2.43

5.48

4.91

2.88

6.57

5.93

3.75

6.96

6.22

 Housing           commercial          civil  Housing           commercial          civil

*Access and equity, contingency and innovation training 
representing $0.21M is not attributed by sector and is not 
included in this graph (total $17.13M).

*TALAS data

*TALAS data

*ABS Data May 2015

“Money from the Fund for the 
provision of training will be 
allocated to each sector of the 
building and construction industry 
in approximately the same 
proportions as the resources of 
the Fund have been contributed 
by that sector” 

CITF Act Part 6 32. (3).

To ensure a more equitable 
distribution of effort among 
employers in relation to 
employment related training ….” 

CITF Act S11 (g)

collections and expenditure are 
tracked by industry sector (Housing, 
commercial and civil). there is 
generally a lag in time between 
collections and expenditure. 

ouTCoMe / KPI

42.0% 36.7%

16.4% 22.2%

41.6% 41.1%
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CITB apprentice funding (graph A)
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CITB funded apprentice places (graph B)

 gto places (as per on-job claims  
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SA construction labour force and apprentices in training

the Apprentice training Support program 
promotes the importance of trade 
qualification completion and licencing 
among the apprentice and trainee 
population in order to maximise industry 
productivity and career opportunity.

in the 2014-15 AtP year the citB 
introduced a range of technological 
changes to the program to improve data 
collection and validation of workplace on 
job training.

the most significant of these changes 
is in the recording of on job skills/tasks 
performed by the apprentices and 
approved by the employer, using digital 
log book “My Profiling”. Since november 
2014 over 1 000 1st and 2nd year 
apprentices have embraced the initiative 
as it has been rolled out to industry. 

in 2014-15 this was carried out through 
three funding streams (refer graph A):

•	 off-job tuition funding – citB pays 
a portion of the tuition funding the 
apprentice pays the balance.

•	 tuition funding has been significantly 
affected by Skills for All which provided 
fee-free tuition for electricians. this has 
ceased with effect 10th February 2014.

•	 Reduced apprentice commencements 
have also affected this funding line. 

•	 on-job – the employer receives support 
funding to help cover their costs of 
training an apprentice on the job.

•	 the reach of the Field officers has 
directly grown up take of this funding 
line.

•	 Progressive completion Funding* – 
this is paid to the employer on the 
anniversary of each year of the training 
contract completed by the apprentice.

•	 Significant change has been created 
by a reduction in the funding rate 
during the course of the year.

•	 total number of apprentices funded, 
group training (gto) and directly 
indentured (refer graph B).

this trend reflects the decline in apprentice 
numbers 2010 through 2013 which has 
been more recently off-set by the Field 
officers engaging a higher proportion of the 
total remaining population of apprentices 
and their employers.

ReSulTS

Apprentice Training Rates
the graph below shows ABS workforce 
data and the number of registered 
apprentices in training. the ‘Apprentice 
training Rate’ is a simple computation of 
the latter divided by the former. 

•	 7 year Apprentice training rate, based 
on ABS workforce and tAS apprentice 
numbers was 8.7%

•	 in 2014-15 it was 8.7% – no change

this global ABS data does not accurately 
reflect the impact of citB influence. it 
includes electro-technology personnel which 
significantly inflates the overall numbers. 

not all of the ‘ABS workforce’ or 
‘registered apprentices’ meet citB 
eligibility criteria (particularly in the 
‘electro-technology’ space where 
personnel work in other industry sectors). 

•	 the Apprentice training Rate based on 
citB workforce and Apprentice data 
was 11.5% for 2014-15. 4 645 (citB 
supported Apprentice) / 40 566 (citB 
training card Holders) an increase of 
2% over the 2013-14 figure of 9.5%

•	 citB coverage of the total apprentice 
population is 82.8%: citB eligible total 
= 4,645 / total Registered 5,608. An 
increase of 8.8% over the 2013-14 
figure of 74%

Apprentices Training for 
licencing and WHS in their  
final years
•	 2,874 places were provided to 

apprentices for courses in licencing 
and WHS during their final years

•	 1,635 individuals undertook this training  
which was 35% of the citB  
supported Apprentices

licencing Training for Apprentices 
(a key “productivity” factor)

•	 1,239 places were provided to 
apprentices for short courses in 
licencing during their final years of the 
apprenticeship. 1 348 provided 2013-14

WHS Training for Apprentices 
(this includes working at heights 
which results in a ‘ticket’ outcome)

•	 1,635 places were provided to 
apprentices for short courses in WHS 
training, 1 206 provided 2013-14

Source: NCVER (ANZSCO construction codes as defined by CITB) SA, ABS Labour Force Construction Industry SA 6291.0.55.003

Apprentice training Support

“Generally to coordinate training 
and personnel development 
within the building and 
construction industry and to 
support appropriate training 
programs” 

CITF Act S11

“To promote increased 
productivity, career opportunities, 
personal satisfaction and 
occupational health and 
safety within the building and 
construction industry through 
training.” 

CITF Act S11

Program 1

*in the 2015-16 AtP year this funding stream will be 
integrated into the on-job funding stream.

7 year Apprentice training rate

8.7%
2013-14, 8.7% – no change

Apprentice training Rate  
based on citB workforce  
and Apprentice data

11.5%
2013-14, 9.5% – 2% increase

citB coverage of the total 
apprentice population

82.8%
2013-14, 74% – 8.8% increase
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ReSulTS

the construction Worker program 
addresses this objective for the 
extant workforce (as distinct 
from apprentices). the program 
provides access for eligible workers 
to discounted training in order to 
facilitate up-skilling / cross skilling.

•	 in consultation with industry sector 
committees and a range of internal 
and external research, an extensive 
schedule of training activities is 
developed for the AtP. 

•	 training is delivered by citB-
endorsed Rto under a framework 
consistent with industry needs and 
the AQtF.

•	  Rto apply to be citB-endorsed 
providers and the Rto act as 
agents to deliver a range of 
prescribed training programs.

•	 Post training Surveys indicate 
91% of participants feel that  
the trainer was effective.

Construction worker training places  
2008-09 to 2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

2012-13

2011-12

2010-11 30 146

27 374

22 655

21 050

19,463

training places

Training places by region of residence 2014-15 (19 463 places total)

northern Adelaide 7.3%

Adelaide Hills 4.9%

limestone coast 3.9%

yorke 2.1%

eyre 1.4%

Fleurieu1.9%

other 
10.7%

Metropolitan 
69.7%

Murraylands 1.6%

Mid north 0.8%

Whyalla 0.6%

other 0.0%

Barossa light 2.0%

Riverland 1.2%

Port Pirie 1.2%

northern Regional 1.2%

kangaroo island 
0.2 %

ReSulTS

the construction worker workforce 
‘training rate’ meets or exceeds a 
benchmark index. 

Target Training Rate
cW places / citB (training  
card Holders) workforce %.  
nominal target =

35%

CITB Registered 
2014-15:  
19 463 places supported /  
40 566 citB training card Holders = 

47.9%
2013-14:  
21,050 places supported /  
43 693 citB training card Holders  
= 48.2% 

ABS datum
2014-15:  
19 463 places / 64 200  
construction Workforce = 

30.3% 
(ABS data May 2015)

2013-14:  
21,050 places / 64,600  
construction Workforce  
= 32.6% 
(ABS data May 2014)

“To promote increased 
productivity, career opportunities, 
personal satisfaction and 
occupational health and 
safety within the building and 
construction industry through 
training” 

CITF Act S11 

Productivity / WHS

Workforce Feedback  
(Post training evaluation survey) 

Awareness of CITB supported 
training:

•	 78% of survey respondents were  
aware the courses was subsidised by 
citB a decrease from 81% 2013-14.  
(there was a large cohort of 
companies carrying out training in 
the 2013-14 financial year. these 
companies tend to enrol employees in 
training and pay the “gap” for training).

Satisfaction with training outcomes 

•	 89% of survey respondents found the 
courses attended were worthwhile 
compared with 84% 2013-14.

Increased skills learnt

•	 77% of respondents increased their 
skills learnt, increased on 2013-14  
of 69%. the effectiveness of the 
training was given a 4.0 out of 5.

Relevance of training

•	 81% of respondents thought the 
training was meeting their needs 
increase from 79% in 2013-14. An 
average rating of 4.3 was given an 
increase from 4.0 in 2013-14.

Regionally based trainees are 
proportionately represented 
in the training data.
22% of training places can be attributed 
to Regional post codes. this compares 
favourably with the ABS figure for June 
2014 released March 2015 of 77% for 
greater Adelaide and 23.0% for the rest  
of South Australia.

citB brokered a number of regional 
training initiatives in the Riverland, eyre 
Peninsula and South east Regions. 

2014-15 current worker expenditure by 
course category ($4.49M total)

Business management 
6.7%

WHS  
27.3%

other  
0.0%

construction 
management 
2.0%

construction 
skills 
64.0%

64% of expenditure in this program is related 
to core construction Skills development.  
in the 2013-14 year it was 62.3%.

53% of training places are in the Safety 
category. in the 2013-14 year 54.3%  
was in the Safety category.

Business management 
4.4%

WHS  
53.0%

other  
0.0%

construction 
management 
1.3%

construction 
skills 
41.2%

2014-15 construction worker training places 
by course category (19,463 places total)

construction Worker

Program 2

numbers have declined steadily 
primarily because of economic factors 
affecting the construction industry and 
its workforce. the nature of training 
has changed most notably industry 
saturation of White card has reduced 
the head count of trainees.

19 463 training places is very close 
to 50% of the current citB-registered 
construction workforce. 
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•	 Support is provided where the 
content is outside the scope of 
the national training package 
framework.

•	 the response can be tailored 
to the need and provided by 
specialist providers.

the two targeted programs referred 
by industry are outlined below and 
require ongoing support.

innovation Access & equity

 -  Placement support for employers  
and aspiring apprentices.

 -  Advice in respect of cultural 
considerations and imperatives to 
Rto, employers and related agencies. 

•	 the citB has developed a nationally 
Accredited program, certificate ii in 
Remote construction Maintenance, to 
support vocational educational training 
in remote communities.   

ReSulT

•	 Aboriginal construction Workers are 
1.27% of the total citB training card 
Holders - no change since 2013-14.

•	 Aboriginal Apprentices are 0.99% of 
the total citB supported Apprentices  
– no change since 2013-14.

Note: Aboriginal Population as a 
percentage of the Total Population of 
South Australia by ABS Census figures 
2011 (2075.0) is 1.9%.

Women in Construction
•	 Promotion of women in trades in 

prominent print and social media.

•	 encourage girls participation within  
the d2c program.

•	 encourage Aboriginal women to 
participate in the d2c program  
and apprenticeship programs.

•	 the citB is to investigate the extent 
of the ‘hidden cohort of women in 
construction’, who are the partners of 
sole traders and SMe operators who 
support the conduct of the business  
by ‘running the office’. 

ReSulT

•	 30 female students are undertaking 
d2c certificate 1 and 7 are enrolled 
in the d2c Plus program across 21 
schools. 32 d2c and 1 d2c+ in 2013-14.

•	 Women construction Workers are 
5.15% of the total citB training card 
Holders 5.3% in 2013-14.

•	 Women Apprentices are 0.81% of  
total citB Supported Apprentices 
0.74% in 2013-14.

demand driven or “As needs” 
Programs
Provision of support is strategic and as for 
all other programs, is in response to a need 
or demand that is not otherwise being met.

Skilled Migrant Workforce
•	 citB training cards are provided on 

meeting prescribed eligibility criteria  
on an as required basis.

•	 no case management activity for the 
2014-15 year.

Mature Age Workforce

Wise guys Program

•	 Provide an alternate career path in 
training for skilled mature age workers. 

•	 no activity 2014-15 due to a lack of 
demand from the training sector for 
trainers.

Benchmark data

the citB data suggests the industry is 
getting younger. this may in part be due 
to older workers electing to leave when 
activity levels are low.

•	 21.38% of citB training card Holders 
are 50 years of age or older – 23% in 
2013-14.

•	 17.56% of citB training card 
Holders aged 50 and over undertook 
construction Worker training during 
the year – 22% in 2013-14.

•	 1.79% of the Apprentices in the citB 
Supported Apprentice Workforce are 
aged 50 or older – 2% in 2013-14.

This program addresses new 
/ emerging technologies and 
skills shortage areas in order to 
establish a training response.  

Building Information 
Modelling (BIM)
•	 during 2014-15 the citB–developed 

A Practical Introductory Guide to 
Building Information Modelling course 
was conducted.  With developments 
moving quickly, updating was 
deferred pending the conduct of 
the Build SA series of workshops. 
Following completion the BiM training 
requirement will be reviewed. 

•	 over 110 people from all sectors of 
the industry attended the initial Build 
SA forum. the rest of the series will 
be conducted in 2015-16.   

•	 this year 77 participants completed 
the one or two-day citB 
introductory course compared to  

84 in 2013-14.

Heritage Trades Skills 
Program (HTSP)
•	 theoretical and practical training is 

delivered on public or community 
heritage building sites with a certificate 
of Participation issued on successful 
completion.

•	 the desired outcome is to build 
a network of Heritage-aware and 
Heritage-skilled industry practitioners. 

•	 only one course was conducted in 
2014-15 attended by 8 citB supported 
participants, held at Botanic gardens.  

•	 Partnering arrangements were 
reviewed;

 -  citB and national trust SA ran a joint 
forum in August 2014 to discuss how 
collaboration, training and heritage 
restoration of buildings can be part 
of a formula to improve skills and 
conserve heritage infrastructure.    
over 30 interested parties attended 
the forum and a number of projects 
are on the horizon for 2016 and 2017.

 -  new partners were sought from a 
wider group of public and community 
owners in order that we might source 
new projects.

 -  A schedule has been developed for 
2015 / 16. 

“to perform any functions that are 
necessary or convenient for or 
incidental to the performance of 
functions referred to above.”  

needs with on-going 
Program Support
the two key identified needs are pre-
apprenticeship support through the 
doorways2construction™ (d2c) 
program and the Aboriginal Workforce 
development initiative (AWdi).

Because of the scale of d2c it is 
addressed in its own right in this report, 
see page 20.

Aboriginal Workforce 
development Initiative (AWdI)
•	 in operation since 2011 with a focus on 

students and young people in VetiS or 
pre-vocational programs.

•	 	The	AWDI	field	officer	provides;	

 -  Mentoring support provided across 
career path areas: school, pre-
vocational, apprenticeship and 
employment.

citB addresses participation needs 
through specific initiatives that operate 
outside main stream programs.

Program 3 Program 4
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doorways2construction
tM 

VeT in Schools
d2c is based on a general introduction to 
the industry for students with a delivery 
focus at year 11. it now provides for a 
seamless pathway from year 10 to year 
12 via the d2c Plus pathway program. 
this provides a solid foundation of skill, 
knowledge and experience, which 
articulates into a range of vocational 
training courses and is the gateway for 
many varied career options.

d2c and d2c Plus currently have 983 
enrolments at the beginning of the 2015 
school year. Mid-year occur in July for the 
start of Semester 2.

overview of 2014
•	 there were 54 doorways programs 

across urban and regional SA, 
including 6 from the non-government 
sector and 8 Rto. these programs 
source students from 86 schools.

The data for the 2014 school cohort

•	 822 enrolments in school based 
certificate i d2c program.

•	 265 enrolments in the d2c Plus 
program from the 2013 cohort.

•	 81% returned positive outcomes, 
including the completion of the SAce.

•	 47% went directly into the industry.

•	 17% won employment in a non-related 
industry. 

•	 17% returned to study.

The data for the 2015 school year 
cohort

•	 there were 41 doorways programs 
across urban and regional SA, 
including 4 from the non-government 
sector and 6 Rto. these schools 
source students from 83 schools.

•	 768 enrolments in school based 
certificate i and ii d2c programs. 

•	 215 enrolments in the d2c Plus 
program from the 2014 cohort.

•	 there are 5 civil programs.

•	 there are 5 Plumbing programs.

•	 destination data available at the end  
of the school year.

looking Forward
there are significant challenges to 
the program in the latter part of 2015 
which are currently being addressed. 
employment uptake to the industry has 
been particularly difficult and early in the 
year we saw responses from employers 
cool due to the then yet unresolved issue 
of Wage Progression. We are happy to 
report that a Regulatory solution to this 
has seen interest return to employing our 
d2cPlus cohort, but lower than usual 
enrolments in Jan/Feb reflect community 
uncertainty at the time about the strength 
of the construction sector.

external factors propose the greatest risk 
to the d2c program. these include:

•	 changes to government Vet funding 
arrangements.

•	 industrial matters which arise from time 
to time.

•	 changes to the national training 
Package. 

•	 perceptions about employment 
opportunities in the industry. 

the citB is seeking to minimise these 
impacts to provide stability and certainty 
for our client community.

Conclusion
Since its inception in 2000, the doorways 
program has seen over 8 000 student 
enrolments. 

A key objective remains providing 15-
17yr olds with an opportunity to make an 
informed career choice. 

With employment outcomes subject to 
market conditions, doorways is captive to 
the ebb and flow of the economy.

educationally, the value of the program 
is greater than the sum of its parts 
with teachers and trainers reporting 
higher retention rates at yr12, improved 
behaviours, commitment to their career 
path and a growing passion for the 
industry.

the program is highly respected by both 
industry and the education sectors and 
continues to be the program of choice by 
schools wishing to expose their students 
to a career in construction.

doorways2constructiontM

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

1200

100

800

600

400

200

0

 d2c Plus      d2c

639

24

832

45

853

75

957

109

1094

126

996

235

822

243

768

215

doorways2constructionPlustM – destinations 2014-15

Objectives of D2C
•	 Stimulate awareness of the 

building and construction 
industry as a career option  
for young people.

•	 develop basic skills that 
students can take into the 
industry. 

•	 Provide students with 
accurate information about 
career opportunities and the 
means to successfully seek 
work in the industry.

•	 develop and foster a ‘work-
ready’ attitude and skills 
base. 

•	 expose participants to 
industry expectations 
focussing on safety,  
punctuality, teamwork, 
commitment to deadlines 
and work standards.

23%

17%

17% 7%

7%

7%

12%

10%
Carpentry, 61

other within industry 
(cab, concreting, solar 
panel install, painting, 
electrician), 45

plumbing, 19
other non-related 

employment, 46

tGss continuing, 19

returned to school,18

seeking employment, 31

unknown, 26
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Research and Skills  
development Program

Advisory Function

“To act as a principal adviser to  
the relevant State and Federal 
Ministers on any matter relating 
to training in the building and 
construction industry.”

Construction Industry 
Advisory Body
the Act prescribes an advisory function to 
the State and commonwealth Ministers.  
When the legislation was enacted, these 
functions were separately externally 
funded.  that is no longer the case.

citB no longer has a formal relationship 
with the commonwealth Minister.  this 
function has been addressed through 
engagement with the construction and 
Property Services Skills council (cPiSc) 
which will cease in november 2015 
when it is replaced by a new agency and 
Federal system.

citB initiates engagement with the 
Minister direct, through the training and 
Skills commission or with departmental 
officers, on matters as they arise, and 
informal scheduled consultation.

citB also responds to consultation 
requests from government, primarily the 
department of State development (dSd) 
and the training and Skills commission 
(taSc) at state level. 

citB is actively engaged with the 
Australian Forum of construction industry 
training Funds (AFcitF) and state and 
territory advisory body counterparts. 

in facilitating training that meets industry 
needs, citB interacts with a wide group 
of agencies at local/regional, state and 
federal levels.

the Advisory function is informed by the 
consultative structures of citB to ensure 
proposals and responses reflect industry 
advice at all levels and in all sectors.

liaison Function

To promote, undertake, or support 
programs designed to facilitate 
the international exchange of 
information relevant to training 
or personnel development within 
the building and construction 
industry. 

CITF Act S 11

 
the Act also prescribes a liaison function.  

this function is carried out at State and 
commonwealth levels, and through 
occasional contact with international 
bodies mainly in the form of visiting 
delegations (most recently from Bhutan 
and Singapore).

nationally, the construction advisory 
bodies that are attached to construction 
training funds stand out in their capacity 
to maintain an effective liaison and 
advisory function compared to other 
industry sectors.  

Results
develop a Workforce demand modelling 
methodology that meets the needs of 
industry.

•	 Work in progress.

A table of critical information requirements 

is developed.

•	 this table is conducted in support of 

AtP development.

A Research Plan is developed resourced 

and actioned.

•	 A Research Plan is implemented in 
support of Annual Reporting and to 

inform AtP development.

emerging needs identified and prioritised 
and a training solution identified.

•	 For the 2014-15 year, a decision was 
taken to consolidate and develop 
existing programming rather than 
seeking to identify new areas of activity.  
A new heritage trades program has 
been scheduled for 2015-16 and 
support provided to the BuildSA BiM 
workshop program.

“To initiate, carry out, support 
or promote research into the 
training and personnel needs of 
the building and construction 
industry.” 

CITF Act S11

To review and evaluate 
employment related training 
programs to ensure that 
they meet training and skill 
requirements of the industry.”

CITF Act S11

the Board conducts, commissions or 
buys research to inform its decision 
making, policy formulation and advisory 
functions as required under the Act. 

 
Key activity:
•	 conduct of the annual post training 

evaluation survey of citB funded 

training.

Major sources of externally-sourced data 
and expert advice are as follows:

•	 economic and statistical data on 
construction industry and vocational 
education and training activity and 
trends and associated analyses and 
research from national and state-based 
sources covering both governmental 
and leading independent sources.

•	 Publicly available research on 
vocational education and training.

•	 Forums raising emerging trends and 
initiatives for the industry.

•	 Subscriptions to data sources.

internally-sourced data provides further 
capacity through:

•	 citBs training and Workforce database, 
tAlAS, and other data sources.

•	 consultation with people in the building 
and construction industry as part of 
citB forums, meetings and field officer 
contact.
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Finance and Administration, compliance

Fy2015 saw revenue increase by 6.5% 
despite a continued challenging operating 
environment in SA shaped by macro-
economic conditions. 

transition, uncertainty, and opportunity 
are the key themes. 

the housing sector has historically been 
the largest source of levy payments and 
this continues to be the case. the housing 
market has remained relatively flat 
reflecting balance in the market between 
supply and unmet demand. this is not 
anticipated to change significantly in the 
next few years.

A weakening Australian dollar, coupled 
with falling commodity prices has seen 
a slow to the mining boom and the 
construction of related infrastructure, as 
companies move past the construction 
phase and focus on streamlining the 
operations of extraction and processing  
of which the citF levy does not apply.

A succession of large projects around 
Adelaide have or will soon enter their 
final stages of construction and not be 
replaced by the same size and scale.

uncertainty exists with renewal energy 
targets (Ret) the effect pausing 
investment in Windfarm developments, 
whilst at the same time well established 
energy providers rationalise their operations.

traditionally a manufacturing hub, the 
impending closure of Holden’s, the effect 
on the supply chain and doubt around 
future defence contracts has increased 
focus on an already high unemployment 
rate. Many companies have entered 
contraction mode rather than growth  
with discretional spending limited and 
projects deferred.

opportunity exists in export markets 
such as agriculture and tourism and the 
construction opportunities this entails, 
and significant investment in cBd 
apartments and hotels has continued. 
industrial space for battle of Bunnings and 
Masters together with new supermarkets 
chains, and petrol stations are welcome 
additions. commercial office Space 
remain oversupplied, whilst growth 
in aged care is apparent. the major 
development of the torrens to torrens 
and darlington interchange will provide 
further construction opportunities on its 
completion.

training expenditure remained even higher 
than expected directly attributed to the 
success of the field team communicating 
with employers and corresponding uptake 
of apprentice support funding.

during the year citB undertook a review 
of their Reserves and liabilities and made 
a change to their accounting policies, 
incorporating a provision for training 
claims of $1.9M that would previously 
have been resourced through Reserves. 
this change saw the planned deficit 
increase to $3.0M, a higher carrying 
amount of liabilities, and a lower Reserve 
required. the Board’s cash levels 
remained consistent throughout the year.

this change was enabled by an improved 
measurement and tracking of claimants, 
in particular apprentices.

the $3.0M deficit reinforced the 
requirement to reduce funding rates in 
Fy2016.

throughout the year the Board 
worked with local councils, the local 
government Association, and department 
Planning transport and infrastructure 
in order to communicate and educate 
stakeholders in the requirements under 
the citF Act.

court action is currently pending over 
disputed unpaid levies.

Service delivery cost centres preformed 
below budget maximising funds delivered 
direct to the industry with administration 
costs representing 7.38%.

Project volumes

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

19,022

16,623 16,493

19,152

18,079

Proportion of levy collected by  
project value

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

31.9%

6.6%

13.9%

9.3%

38.3%

39.0%

7.3%

12.5%
7.5%

33.7%

26.1%

10.0%

14.0%

8.6%

41.2%

21.8%

7.6%

14.1%

9.2%

47.4%

24.9%

8.2%

15.2%

9.4%

42.3%

  under $0.5M    

   $0.5M to $1M   

  $1M to $4M

  $4M to $10M   

   over $10M    

CITB levy / Training Payment Transactions 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

59,987

42,688

44,728

37,047

43,389

42,832

43,116

40,693

52,958

37,812

 levy transactions      training Payment

Budget v actual expenditure other programs 2014-15

 operations    Administration
0.20

0.15

0.10

0.05

-

-0.05

-0.10

-0.15
Program delivery costs Research Finance & Admin governance levy collection costs

0.16
0.13 0.12

0.09

-0.12

objectives Performance outcomes 2014-15 Achieved

65 at risk Projects selected or  
carried over for audit

Audit result

completed 52
outstanding 14
complied 19
not complied 33
non-compliance category
Failed to notify citB 10
inaccurate project value 10
Statutory timeframe breach 12
liquidation 1
Total 33

unqualified audit report received  
30/9/2015

the total cost of this service $1.49M, or 
7.38% of actual expenditure ($20.17M). 

83 809 transactions processed

To ensure compliance  
with the statutory 
requirement to  
pay the CITF levy

To provide an efficient  
service of finance,  
administration, facilities  
and IT across the business

To achieve an unqualified  
audit report

26,202 inbound  
phone calls

$ Admin  
7.38%
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governance

corporate governance 

  

objectives
•	 to ensure the Board and the Fund 

are administered in accordance with 
the citF Act (1993) and other relevant 
legislation, principles and standards

•	 to monitor and drive the performance 
of the Fund

•	 to maximise the effective use of the 
Fund

•	 to provide good governance and 

financial stewardship of the Fund

Implementation
•	 the ceo is responsible for ensuring 

the Board and Fund are administered 
in accordance with the Act and for 
effective use of the Fund.

•	 the Manager Finance and Business 
Services is responsible to ensure 
collection of levies is in accordance 
with the requirements of the Act.

•	 Manager training Programs executes 
monitoring of the effectiveness of  

citB funded training programs  
through a program of desk top and 
site-visit audits.

•	 Manager Research & Skills 
development conducts a series of 
surveys that form part of our validation 
of training effectiveness.

•	 Monitoring and adoption of corporate 
governance principles

•	 Regular reviews of the Risk 
Management Plan are undertaken by 
management under the oversight of 
the Finance and Audit committee in 
accordance with the latest standards.  

•	 internal policies and procedures are 
regularly reviewed for their currency 
and efficacy to ensure the most 
effective use of citB resources.

•	 A continuing strong focus on it 
systems to improve the efficiency of 
levy collections and the delivery of 
training support to the industry.

•	 eligibility of those accessing the fund is 
assessed on fair and impartial criteria.

Performance outcomes  
2014-15
•	 Approval of Fy2015-16 Annual training 

Plan in accordance with the Act.

•	 expenditure of fund was equitably 
disbursed across sectors, course 
categories, demographics and trades.

•	 92.6% of expenditure applied to 
training and core functions prescribed 
in the Act.

•	 Business unit expenditure 12% below 
budget.

•	 8.9% increase in direct application of 
funds to training (largely as a result 
of direct contact by field staff) which 
resulted in change rates for the 2015-16 
Annual training Plan in order to contain 
costs.

•	 Fy2014 Annual Report submitted in 
accordance with the Act.

Board Meetings
the Board of the citB met on 11 scheduled occasions during 2014-15

Board Attendance Record Meetings eligible 
to Attend

Meetings 
Attended

Mary Marsland Presiding Member to 25/7/14 1 1

gay thompson Presiding Member from 14/8/14 10 10

douglas Buchanan 11 10

deputy: Robert donnelly 2 0

natasha Hemmerling 11 11

deputy: Andrew clarke 1 1

gary Henderson 11 11

deputy: Joseph kane 1 1

christine Harrison 10 8

deputy: Angela niedorfer (nee easterbrook) 3 3

Sandra Jaffer 11 8

deputy: chris Went 3 3

denise Janek 11 11

deputy: Beverley tonkin 1 0

Rebecca Pickering 10 9

deputy: ian Markos 2 2

Martin o’Malley 11 9

deputy: esther Van Arend 3 0

Robert Stewart 11 10

deputy: Shari coggins 2 1

Phillip Sutherland 11 5

deputy: Wendy Shelton to 20/8/14 1 0

deputy: Michael Harper from 18/12/14 3 3

non-attendance by a deputy may reflect 
the Board’s formal policy that requires 
a written apology from the Member 
and provision of a full briefing to their 
deputy prior to the meeting. this policy 
operates to ensure the Board fulfils its 
responsibilities to the deputy in preparing 
him or her for informed and effective 
involvement in the meeting. even though 
a deputy is indicated as being eligible, he 
or she may not always be able to attend 
a meeting. All Members and deputies 
were eligible to attend Board Strategic 
Planning.

Regional Meetings
A regional meeting was held in June 2015 
in the Riverland. Regional visits serve two 
purposes. they allow Board members 
to become familiar with issues specific 
to the region being visited, and acquaint 

local people who have an interest in the 
construction industry with citB activities. 
A community forum is usually conducted 
as part of the visit schedule.

Annual Training Plan Approval
the citF Act, Section 32, requires the 
Board to submit its Annual training Plan 
(AtP) for the subsequent financial year to the 
Minister not later than 31 May each year.

the 2015-16 Annual training Plan was 
submitted to the Minister on 22 May 2015.

Annual Report Tabled in 
Parliament
the 2013-14 Annual Report was 
submitted to the Minister on 30 
September 2014. it was tabled in 
Parliament on 11 november 2014.

Authorisations
Authorised officers are appointed in 
accordance with Section 33 of the 
Act. the ceo, Steve larkins, Manager 
Finance and Business Services, Adam 
Warchol and Mark Williams of Mark 
Williams Risk Management Pty ltd 
retained their appointments. corey 
Mcgowan of H.l.B. Mann Judd (S.A.) Pty. 
ltd and Jim gouskos of Moore Stephens 
retained their respective appointments. 

delegations 
the Board maintains a schedule of 
financial delegations that are reviewed 
annually.

other delegations may be made 
periodically against specific actions or 
activities on an ‘as required’ basis.

the following is a summary of delegations 
during the reporting period:

24 July 2014. 

A delegation to provide for continuity of 
operations and implementation of the 
2014-15 Annual training Plan was put in 
place with effect 24th July to empower 
a Working Party comprising Mr Rob 
Stewart, Martin o’Malley, Ms natasha 
Hemmerling, Mr Phil Sutherland and Ms 
denise Janek with all of the pertinent 
powers of the Board for a period until 
appointments replacing members whose 
terms had expired, were gazetted. the 
delegation was duly revoked when the 
appointments were made.

26 March 2015. 

the Board delegated authority to the 
Presiding Member and officers to submit 
a letter to the Vet Reform task Force 
outlining the citB’s position.

the Board delegated authority to act in 
respect of a levy compliance matter to the 
Presiding Member and officers.
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Mary gabrielle 
Thompson

Robert Stewart  
mnia, maicd 
nominee of Master Builders 
Association, SA inc  
(MBA-SA) – Retired

Deputy: Shari coggins 
dBcl – Axis Building 
group, contracts 
Administrator

natasha Hemmerling 
llb (hons), ba, gdlp 
nominee and chairperson 
of Master Plumbers 
Association of SA (MPA–
SA),  – clarke Hemmerling 
lawyers, Partner

Deputy: Andrew clarke  
Master Plumbers 
Association of SA (MPA–SA), 
executive director

Phillip Sutherland
nominee of civil contractors 
Federation (ccF), chief 
executive officer

Deputy: Michael Harper 
– Michael Harper & 
Associates, Principal

Sandra Jaffer
nominee of the Housing 
industry Association – SA & 
nt division (HiA). national 
Administration Manager – 
Apprentices, HiA

Deputy: christopher Went – 
Area construction, general 
Manager

Rebecca Pickering 
nominee of the Property 
council of Australia (SA 
division), Master Builders 
Association SA inc (MBA 
– SA), SQe compliance 
Advisory

Deputy: ian Markos – Master 
Builders Association of SA, 
director of Policy

douglas Buchanan 
nominee of electrical, 
energy and Services 
division – SA Branch, State 
organiser cePu

Deputy: Robert donnelly 
– electrical, energy and 
Services division – SA 
Branch, Secretary cePu

gary Henderson
nominee of Australian 
Workers union (AWu) – 
South Australian Branch 
organiser

Deputy: kristen Rogers 
llB/lP BBSc – Australian 
Workers union (AWu) - 
industrial officer

Martin o’Malley
nominee of construction, 
Forestry, Mining and energy 
union (cFMeu)

Deputy: esther Van Arend 
- construction, Forestry, 
Mining and energy union 
(cFMeu), Healthy Worker 
Project officer

the Board consists of 11 members appointed by the governor in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act as follows: 

•	 An independent Presiding Member nominated by the Minister after 
consultation with industry. 

•	 two Members and deputies, with experience and expertise in the Vet 
Sector nominated by the Minister.

•	 Five Members and deputies nominated by employer associations named in 
Schedule 2 of the Act.

•	 three Members and deputies nominated by employee associations named 
in Schedule 3 of the Act.

Members and their deputies representing the interests of employers in the building and construction industry:

Members and their deputies representing the interests of 
employees in the building and construction industry:

Christine Harrison 
department of State 
development, director Skills 
SA / Retired 

Deputy: Angela niedorfer 
– training and Skills 
commission, Principal Policy 
officer

Members nominated by the Minister

denise Janek
technical and Further 
education SA (tAFe SA) / 
Retired

Deputy: Beverley tonkin 
– department of Further 
education employment 
Science and technology SA 
(dFeeSt) / Retired

Independent 
Presiding Member

directors
AS At 30 June 2015

Conflicts of Interest – 
disclosure by Board Members
during the term of this report, a Register 
of interests was maintained whereby 
members record in advance any interests 
which may conflict with those of citB in 
certain circumstances.  in general terms, 
the citB policy framework is sufficiently 
robust as to ameliorate potential conflicts 
of interest. in the event a situation occurs 
that may entail a potential conflict of 
interest at a Board meeting, the Member 
is obliged to declare that a conflict of 
interest exists, then withdraw from further 
discussion and any vote that may be 
taken on the matter.  

26 June 2015.  Four members declared 
a conflict of interest in respect of the 
Board’s handling of correspondence 
from group training Australia requesting 
a restoration of funding rates. the 
conflicts were declared in respect of the 
Members’ affiliation with group training 
companies;		Doug	Buchanan	(Board	
Member of PeeR), natasha Hemmerling 
(Board Member of MPA), Rebecca 
Pickering (employee of MBA which owns 
a gto), and Sandy Jaffer (employed by 
the HiAgAS).  With the consent of the 
remainder of the Board the Members 
remained party to the discussion.

Planning Framework
the planning framework of citB 
incorporates several internal systems 
including:

•	 Board Strategic Planning Forum and 
the citB Strategic Plan

•	 Business Planning and the AtP 
(approved by the Minister)

•	 Risk Management Plan (subject to 
periodic review and oversight by the 
Finance & Audit committee

•	 Staff Performance Management 
System (“by exception” reporting)

•	 information Management/e-business 
systems and procedures

•	 A rolling review of policies and 
procedures (per the delegations 

schedule)

CITB Advisory Committees
under the provisions of the Act the 
building and construction industry is 
divided into three sectors representing 
civil, commercial, and Housing 
construction. the Board of citB forms 
sub-committees in each of these areas as 
well as a Specialist Services committee. 
these committees meet approximately bi-
monthly (or as required) and comprise an 
agreed membership of people within the 
relevant industry groups.  Membership 
is continuously reviewed and where 
necessary refreshed to ensure industry 
representation is contemporary.

Statutory Authority 
Compliance Reporting 
Requirements

overseas Travel

no overseas travel was funded by citB  
in 2014-15.

Contracts exceeding $4M

citB did not enter into any contracts  
in excess of $4M within the reporting 
period, or which extended beyond the 
Financial year.

Staff employment

citB is tasked with administering the 
construction industry training Fund Act 
1993. However it is not an agency or 
instrumentality of the crown. citB staff 
members are not public servants and 
are employed under either individual 
contracts or the terms of an entity-specific 
enterprise Agreement.

this does not include the Vocational 
Program Manager which is a decd 
position seconded to citB on terms 
established in a Memorandum of 
understanding, on a cost-share 
arrangement.

Bargaining Agreement

the enterprise Agreement is based on the 
South Australian clerks’ Award and from 
1 January 2010 the national employment 
Standards and Private Sector clerks 
Award (commonwealth).

the citB enterprise Agreement was 
negotiated and approved in accordance 
with s.54 of the Fair Work Act 2009 to take 
effect from 23 January 2015 and with a 
nominal expiry date of 31 december 2017.

Public Sector Management Act 
employment conditions do not apply to 
citB staff and managers.

Board Remuneration
Remuneration of Board Members is 
covered by dPc circular 16 issued by the 
department of Premier and cabinet (dPc).

the current framework was approved for 
implementation in September 2013.

Financial Performance
the Auditor-general’s unqualified report 
on the Financial Statements of citB is at 
page 33 of this document.

Fraud
A minor incident of fraud was detected 
during 2014-15.  the fraud was minor in 
nature, perpetrated as a consequence 
of a banking anomaly with an overseas 
institution, was detected by citB internal 
controls and did not result in financial loss 
to the organisation. 

the Board’s Risk Management Plan has 
been reviewed and updated and provides 
a framework for ongoing monitoring of 
potential fraud.  A system of financial 
delegations and counter-signatories 
applies to all financial transactions.

citB management and staff collaborate 
closely with the Auditor-general’s staff to 
monitor and adjust policy settings.

Consultants
consulting services are used primarily 
in augmenting the research capabilities 
of citB.  details of consulting services 
engaged are provided in the notes to the 
Financial Statements. 

Freedom of Information
A Freedom of information (Foi) statement 
is available on the citB website. there 
was no Foi requests lodged with citB 
during the reporting year.

 

corporate governance 

  

The directors of the Board as at 30 June 2015 were:
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Joint Sector Advisory Committee 

name nominating Body/group
Phillip Sutherland (chair) citB Board Member
Michael Harper (co-chair)  citB deputy Board Member
Members are elected at each of the Committee meetings  
to attend the JSAC meetings

Housing Sector committee  (2 Representatives)
Specialist committee  (2 Representatives)
commercial Sector committee  (2 Representatives)
civil Sector committee  (2 Representatives)

Civil Sector Committee 

name nominating Body/group
Rebecca Pickering (chair) citB Board Member
ian Markos (co-chair) citB deputy Board Member
darren Roberts  construction Forestry Mining and 

energy union
John Hutton  institute of Public Works 

engineering Australasia
Andrew Haste local government Association
terry Wright  Australian Asphalt Pavement 

Association
eddy Sain  civil contractors Federation SA 

(part year)
Ray thompson industry Practitioner (part year)
donna griffiths industry Practitioner (part year)
lyn tobarina industry Practitioner (part year)
Vacant SkillsdMc observer
Vacant Australian Workers union
Vacant  Association of consulting 

engineers

Commercial Sector Committee

name nominating Body/group
natasha Hemmerling (chair)  citB Board Member
Andrew clarke (co-chair)  citB deputy Board Member
david thompson Master Builders Association
Harry ennis  construction, Forestry, Mining  

and energy union
John Bricher  Building industry Specialist 

contractors Association
Michael Boyce  Air conditioning & Mechanical 

contractors Association
Vacant Property council of Australia
Bill ktisti Housing industry Association
troy Spanton industry Practitioner
keith McAllister industry Practitioner 
kym olson industry Practitioner
Vacant industry Practitioner

Housing Sector Committee 

name nominating Body/group
denise Janek (chair)  citB Board Member
Bev tonkin (co-chair)  citB deputy Board Member
Aaron cartledge  construction, Forestry, Mining  

and energy union
Ben cunningham Master Painters Association
keith Jasper Master Builders Association
Robert Harding Housing industry Association
Phil cooymans  Association of Wall & ceiling 

industries
Paul Stevens  national Association of  

Steel-framed Housing
terry Walsh  urban development institute  

of Australia (SA div)
livio kuhar industry Practitioner
neil Jackson industry Practitioner
Vacant  Building industry Specialist 

contractors Assoc. of SA

Specialist Services Committee

name nominating Body/group
gary Henderson (chair) citB Board Member
kristen Rogers (co-chair)  citB deputy Board Member
Andrew clarke  Master Plumbers Association 

(Plumbing industry Association‚
chris Rankin  Air conditioning and Mechanical 

contractors Association
Jason Wilder  communications, electrical and 

Plumbing union electrical)
larry Moore   national electrical contractors 

Association
Steve Hall  Building industry Specialist 

contractor’s Association
Paul gesti industry Practitioner
Vacant industry Practitioner
Vacant industry Practitioner

entry level Training Reference Committee 

name nominating Body/group
Robert Stewart (chair) citB Board Member
Shari coggins (co-chair) citB Board Member
Adam turnbull Scott Salisbury Homes
Adele Broster SAce Board of South Australia
christopher Rankin  Air conditioning and Mechanical 

contractors Association
Michael Wakefield  trainee and Apprentice Placement 

Service inc
Simon Heath Principal lecturer - tonsley tAFe
tony Baulderstone civil industry Representative
Steve o’connor  department of education and 

child development 
Brent Bunting  State Manager (SA) – Axis  

Building group

Advisory committees

Policy formation and 
accountability
the Board operates a series of Standing 
and Advisory committees in order to 
develop policy.

two Standing committees of the Board, 
comprised of five Board members each, 
have the following functions:

•	 	Training	Policy	Committee	(TPC)	-	
develops policies associated with 
the achievement of citB strategic 
objectives and the application of 
citB resources in order to optimise 
the outcomes specified to do so. it 
typically deals with parameters such 
as needs determination, eligibility, 
scope of training, volume and rates 
of support. tPc is informed via 
recommendations from the Sector 
committees through the Joint Sector 
Advisory committee (JSAc) and from 
the entry level training Reference 
committee (eltRc).

•	 	Finance	and	Audit	Committee	-	deals	
with	fiduciary	matters;	revenue	
items, accountability, compliance 
management and reporting. it makes 
recommendations to the Board in 
respect of policies governing the 
collection of revenue, prudential 
management of the Fund and global 
allocation of resources.

committee Structure 

the citF Act prescribes the formation 
of	Sector	Committees.;	Housing,	
commercial and civil Sectors being 
specified. in addition the Board has 
raised the Specialist Services committee 
covering Plumbing electrical and 
related services. these committees are 
comprised so as to provide a strong 
industry focus and objective advice as a 
critical contribution to the quality of citB 
policy formation and decision making.

•	 	Input	from	each	of	the	sector	
committees is collated and considered 
by the JSAc which is comprised of two 
representatives from each of the Sector 
committees. 

•	 	Sector	Committee	input	is	the	principal	
mechanism through which the Annual 
training Plan is shaped and developed 
each year.

•	 	Each	of	the	Sector	Committees,	the	
JSAc and eltRc have a non-voting 
Board Member as chair and co-chair 
as a means of ensuring direct feedback 
to the Board on matters under 
consideration.

the contract Review Assessment 
committee is formed comprising up to 
four Board Members, for explicit tasks on 
an as-required basis. 

Board Committees 2014-15

Finance and Audit Committee

Phil Sutherland (chair)

Rebecca Pickering

douglas Buchanan  

christine Harrison

Sandra Jaffer   

Training Policy Committee

Martin o’Malley (chair)

gary Henderson 

Rob Stewart

natasha Hemmerling

denise Janek

WoRKIng PARTIeS 
(WHen RequIRed)

JoInT SeCToR AdVISoRy 
CoMMITTee (JSAC)

HouSIng CoMMITTee 

CoMMeRCIAl CoMMITTee 

CIVIl CoMMITTee 

SPeCIAlIST SeRVICeS 
CoMMITTee

enTRy leVel TRAInIng 
ReFeRenCe CoMMITTee 

 (elTRC)

ConTRACT ReVIeW 
ASSeSSMenT CoMMITTee 

(WHen RequIRed)

FInAnCe & AudIT (FAC)BoARd

TRAInIng PolICy (TPC)

AS At 30 June 2015
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Certification
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Wayville SA 5034 
PO Box 1227 Unley SA 5061 

Telephone 08 8172 9500  
Facsimile 08 8172 9501 
email citb@citb.org.au

Website www.citb.org.au 
ABN 39 817 133 546 

  

 Level 1, 5 Greenhill Road
Wayville SA 5034
PO Box 1227 Unley SA 5061

Telephone 08 8172 9500 
Facsimile 08 8172 9501
Email citb@citb.org.au

    

Website www.citb.org.au
ABN 39 817 133 546 

30 September 2014

Hon Gail Gago, MLC
Minister for Employment, Higher Education and Skills
GPO Box 1838
ADELAIDE SA 5001

Dear Minister

On behalf of the Directors of the Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) and in accordance with 
Section 17 of the Construction Industry Training Fund Act 1993, I have pleasure in enclosing the Annual 
Report incorporating the audited financial statements of the CITB for 2013-14, for your information and 
presentation to Parliament.

The report sets out the circumstances and results of the CITB’s operations during the 2013-14 Financial 
Year. The result was a deficit of $3.02M against an expected $1.2M deficit. The deficit was funded from 
Reserves, and is largely attributable to an increase in the uptake of Apprentice Training Support as our 
communications with apprentices and their employers has been markedly improved since the engagement 
of three Field Officers.

In the near term the industry environment is such that revenue is expected to remain tight, so expenditure 
controls in the form of changes in the rate of funding per training event have been put in place.

The CITB has received an unqualified report from the Auditor General for 2013-14.

Developments in spheres other than training bear on the CITB and the manner in which it addresses 
industry need. The state of the industry largely determines demand for training and the capacity of the 
CITB to resource it.  Our successful and enduring doorways2construction ™ program is faced with a 
number of challenges ranging from industrial fallout to incongruence between VET and education 
imperatives.  These are being addressed in a structured way through our advisory committees.

While a training response in itself may not be the means by which these are resolved, CITB continues to 
draw on its industry advisory networks in order to inform and develop flexible and adaptive approaches to 
addressing our two key objectives encapsulated in our ‘by-line’; Building Skills, Future Workforce.

Yours sincerely

Gay Thompson
Presiding Member
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Financial Statements 

STATeMenT oF CoMPReHenSIVe InCoMe

FoR tHe yeAR ended 30 June 2015

note 2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Income

industry levies 4  16,724  15,152 

interest  393  538 

other income 5  91  465 

Total Income  17,208  16,155 

expenses

collection Agent fees  70  68 

depreciation and amortisation 6  62  353 

employee benefits costs 7  2,005  2,011 

occupancy  153  156 

Promotion  126  218 

Research  16  32 

Supplies and Services 8  481  572 

training claims  17,128  15,606 

training delivery  172  158 

Total expenses  20,213  19,174 

net Result ( 3,005) ( 3,019) 

Total Comprehensive Result ( 3,005) ( 3,019) 

STATeMenT oF FInAnCIAl PoSITIon

FoR tHe yeAR ended 30 June 2015

note 2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Current Assets

cash and cash equivalents 11  2,169  782 

Receivables 12  420  529 

other financial assets 13  10,090  11,563 

Total Current Assets  12,679  12,874 

non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 15  223  212 

intangible assets 16  9  11 

Total non-Current Assets  232  223 

Total Assets  12,911  13,097 

Current liabilities

Payables 17  2,046  1,219 

employee benefits 18  204  203 

Provisions 19  1,955  - 

Total Current liabilities  4,205  1,422 

non-Current liabilities

Payables 17  15  14 

employee benefits 18  276  241 

Total non-Current liabilities  291  255 

Total liabilities  4,496  1,677 

net Assets  8,415  11,420 

Reserves  7,597  9,027 

Retained earnings  818  2,393 

Total equity  8,415  11,420 

unrecognised contractual commitments 21

contingent assets and liabilities 22
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Financial Statements 

STATeMenT oF CHAngeS In equITy

FoR tHe yeAR ended 30 June 2015

operational Risk Reserve
(Prudential Reserve)

Strategic  
Reserve

Retained  
earnings

Total

$,000 $,000 $,000 $,000

Balance at 30 June 2013  13,034 -  1,405  14,439 

total comprehensive Result 2013-2014  - - ( 3,019) ( 3,019) 

transfer from Reserve ( 4,007) -  4,007  - 

Balance at 30 June 2014  9,027 -  2,393  11,420 

total comprehensive Result 2014-2015  - - ( 3,005) ( 3,005) 

transfer from operational Risk Reserve 
(Prudential Reserve)

( 2,430) 1,000  1,430  - 

Balance at 30 June 2015  6,597 1,000  818  8,415 

 

STATeMenT oF CASH FloWS

FoR tHe yeAR ended 30 June 2015

note 2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Cash flows from operating Activities

Cash Inflows

Receipts from industry training levies  16,754  15,553 

interest received  494  607 

gSt recovered from the Ato  159  159 

other receipts  79  484 

Cash generated from operations  17,486  16,803 

Cash outflows

employee benefits paid ( 1,968) ( 1,940) 

training expenditure paid ( 14,250) ( 15,403) 

gSt paid to the Ato ( 15) ( 11) 

other payments ( 1,270) ( 1,388) 

Cash used in operations ( 17,503) ( 18,742) 

net Cash used in operating activities 23(b) ( 17) ( 1,939) 

Cash flows from Investing Activities

Cash Inflows

Proceeds from term deposits  14,753  16,811 

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment  76  39 

Cash generated from investing activities  14,829  16,850 

Cash outflows

Purchase of investments ( 13,279) ( 15,812) 

Payment for plant and equipment ( 146) ( 106) 

Cash used in investing activities ( 13,425) ( 15,918) 

net Cash provided by / (used in) Investing Activities  1,404  932 

net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  1,387 ( 1,007) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year  782  1,789 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 23(a)  2,169  782 
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notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
FoR tHe yeAR ended 30 June 2015

1 objectives of the CITB
 the construction industry training Board (Board) is established 
under the Construction Industry Training Fund Act 1993 (citF Act).

the Board’s responsibilities include:

•	 management and administration of the construction 
Industry	Training	Fund;

•	 to act as a principal adviser to the Minister for employment, 
Higher education and Skills and the Minister for 
tertiary education, Skills, Science and Research for the 
commonwealth on training related matters for the Building 
and	Construction	Industry	in	South	Australia;

•	 preparation	of	training	plans;

•	 promote increased productivity, career opportunities, 
personal	satisfaction	and	occupational	health	and	safety;

•	 to imitate, carry out, support or promote research into 
training	and	personal	needs;

•	 to liaise with educational, professional and training bodies 
in	relation	to	training	and	personnel	development;

•	 co-ordination of training, review and evaluation of 
employment related training programs.

the Fund collects revenue by way of a levy of 0.25 percent of 
the value of building and construction work over $15,000.00. 
this revenue is invested back into the industry in the form of 
expenditure on training.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of accounting
the Board has prepared these financial statements in 
compliance with section 23 of the Public Finance and Audit 
Act 1987 (PFAA).

the financial statements are general purpose financial 
statements. the accounts have been prepared in 
accordance with relevant Australian Accounting Standards 
and comply with treasurer’s instructions and Accounting 
Policy Statements promulgated under the provision of the 
PFAA, and the requirements of the Construction Industry 
Training Fund Act 1993.

the Board has applied Australian Accounting Standards that 
are applicable to not-for-profit entities, as the Board is a not-
for-profit entity.

the preparation of the financial statements requires:

•	 the use of certain accounting estimates and requires 
management to exercise its judgement in the process 
of applying the Board’s accounting policies. the 
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or 
where assumptions and estimates are significant to 
the financial statements, are outlined in the applicable 
notes 

•	 accounting policies are selected and applied in a 
manner which ensures that the resulting financial 
information satisfies the concepts of relevance and 
reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the 
underlying transactions or other events are reported

•	 compliance with Accounting Policy Statements 
issued pursuant to section 41 of the Public Finance 

and Audit Act 1987. in the interest of public 
accountability and transparency the accounting policy 
statements require the following note disclosures, 
which have been included in this financial report: 

a)  revenues, expenses, financial assets and liabilities 
where the counterparty/transaction is with an entity 
within the SA government as at reporting date, 
classified according to their nature. A threshold of 
$100 000 for separate identification of these items applies 

b)  expenses incurred as a result of engaging consultants

c)  employees whose normal remuneration is equal to 
or greater than the base executive remuneration level 
(within $10 000 bandwidths) and the aggregate of the 
remuneration paid or payable or otherwise made available, 
directly or indirectly by the entity to those employees 

d)  board/committee member and remuneration 
information, where a board/committee member is 
entitled to receive income from membership other than 
a direct out-of-pocket reimbursement.

the Australian accounting standards and interpretations 
that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet 
effective, have not been adopted by the Board for the period 
ending 30 June 2015. the Board has assessed the impact 
of the new and amended standards and interpretations, and 
considers there will be no material impact on the accounting 
policies or the financial statements.

the construction industry training Board’s Statement of 
comprehensive income, Statement of Financial Position, 
and Statement of changes in equity have been prepared on 
an accrual basis and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention except as otherwise noted.

the Statement of cash Flows has been prepared on a cash 
basis.

the financial statements have been prepared on a twelve 
month operating cycle and are presented in Australian currency.

b)  Comparative figures
the presentation and classification of items in the financial 
statements are consistent with prior periods except where 
a specific Accounting Policy Statement or Australian 
Accounting Standard have required a change.

c)  Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to 
the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

d)  Taxation
the Board is exempt from income tax in terms of section 
11.5 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997, as amended. 

the Board is exempt from Payroll tax in South Australia.

the Board is liable for Fringe Benefits tax and goods and 
Services tax (gSt).

income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the 
amount of gSt except where the amount of gSt incurred 
by the Board as a purchaser is not recoverable from 
the Australian taxation office. Receivables (except for 
prepayments) and payables are stated with the amount of 
gSt included.

e)  Income and expenses
income and expense are recognised in the Board’s 
Statement of comprehensive income when and only when it 
is probable the flow of economic benefit to or from the entity 
will occur and can be reliably measured.

industry levies are recognised as income when the Board 
obtains control of the levies. control is normally obtained 
upon their receipt by the Board or its collection agents.

interest revenue is recognised as it accrues.

income from the disposal of non-current assets is recognised 
when control of the asset has passed to the buyer and is 
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.

training claims are recognised as expenses when conditions 
as specified within terms and conditions are met. When it is 
probable that a claim is progressing towards submission an 
expense is recognised through a provision.

f)  Current and non-current classification
Assets and liabilities are characterised as current or non-
current in nature. the Board has a clearly defined operating 
cycle of twelve months. Assets and liabilities that are to be 
sold, consumed or realised as part of the normal operating 
cycle even when they are not expected to be realised within 
twelve months after the reporting date have been classified 
as current assets or current liabilities. All other assets and 
liabilities are classified as non-current.

Where asset and liability line items combine amounts 
expected to be realised within twelve months and more 
than twelve months, the Board has separately disclosed the 
amounts expected to be recovered or settled after more than 
twelve months.

g)  Cash and cash equivalents
cash and cash equivalents recorded in the Statement 
of cash Flows includes cash on hand, cash at bank and 
deposits held at call. cash is measured at nominal value.

h) Receivables
Receivables in respect of accrued levy revenue and debtors 
are due for settlement within 30 days and are recorded at 
their recoverable amount. At the end of each reporting period 
the receivable balances are reviewed and a provision is raised 
in respect of any balance where recovery is considered 
doubtful.

Accrued levy income includes all amounts held by collection 
agents at balance date.

i)  other financial assets
other Financial Assets comprise term deposits held to 
maturity for periods of one month and greater. the Board 
measures financial assets at historical cost.

j)  non-current asset acquisition and recognition
Assets are initially recorded at cost plus any incidental 
cost involved in the acquisition. non-current assets are 
subsequently measured at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation. the Board capitalises all non-current assets 
with a value of one thousand dollars ($1,000) or more.

k)  Impairment
All non-current tangible and intangible assets are tested 
for indication of impairment at each reporting date. Where 
there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount 
is estimated. An amount by which the asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an 
impairment loss.

impairment is generally limited to where an asset’s 
depreciation or amortisation is materially understated or 
where the replacement cost is falling.

l)  depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
All non-current assets, having a limited useful life, are 
systematically depreciated/amortised over their useful lives 
in a manner that reflects the consumption of their service 
potential. Amortisation is used in relation to intangible assets 
such as software, while depreciation is applied to physical 
assets such as property, plant and equipment.

depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 
is calculated on a straight-line basis for each class of 
depreciable asset so as to write off the cost of the asset over 
its expected useful life.

the depreciation and amortisation rates used for each class 
of depreciable asset are set out as follows: 

•	 Furniture and fittings 20 percent

•	 computer equipment 25 percent

•	 office machines 20 percent

•	 Motor vehicles 15 percent

•	 leasehold improvements 35 percent

•	 computer Software 25 percent

m)  Payables
Payables include creditors, accrued expenses, accrued 
training expenses and employment on-costs.

creditors represent the amounts owing for goods and 
services received prior to the end of the reporting period that 
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period.

Accrued expenses represent goods and services provided 
by other parties during the period that are unpaid at the end 
of the reporting period and where an invoice has not been 
received at the end of the reporting period.

employment on-costs include superannuation contributions 
and workers compensation premiums with respect to 
outstanding liabilities for salaries and wages, long service 
leave and annual leave.

training expenses are recognised as an expense in the 
financial year that the expense is incurred. the balance of 
training expenses incurred and not paid at the end of the 
financial year is included as accrued training expenses.
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notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
FoR tHe yeAR ended 30 June 2015

n)  employee benefits
employee benefits comprise entitlements for salaries and 
wages, annual leave, personal leave and long service leave. 
Provision has been made in the Financial Statements, 
where stated, for the Board’s liability for employee benefits 
arising from services rendered by employees to balance 
date. long-term employee benefits are measured at present 
value and short-term employee benefits are measured at 
nominal values. Superannuation and workers’ compensation 
insurance premiums are classified as payables.

 Salaries and wages
liability for salaries and wages are measured as the amount 
unpaid at reporting date at remuneration rates current at 
reporting date.

 Annual leave
Provision has been made for the unused component of 
annual leave at balance date. the provision has been 
calculated at nominal amounts based on projected salary 
rates. Related on-costs are reported as payables.

 Personal leave
under the citB enterprise Agreement 2015 taking effect 
from 23 January 2015, employees who are party to the 
Agreement and have between 2 and 5 years of service are 
entitled to accrue a maximum of twenty five percent (25%) 
of their personal leave entitlement. if they have more than 5 
years of service they are entitled to accrue a maximum of 
thirty percent (30%) of their personal leave entitlement.

 Long service leave
the liability for long service leave is measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in respect 
of services provided by employees up to the end of the 
reporting period using the projected unit credit method.

the estimated liability for long service leave is based on 
actuarial assumptions over expected future salary and wage 
levels, experience of employee departures and periods of 
service. these assumptions are based on employee data 
over SA government entities. expected future payments are 
discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on government bonds with durations that match, as 
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

 Superannuation
the Board has contributed 9.50 (9.25) percent of the 
employees’ base salary into their prescribed superannuation 
fund. this amount represents the Board’s full liability for 
the year. the liability for superannuation is included in 
employment on-costs.

o) Remuneration of employees
In accordance with the Accounting Policy Framework II 
General Purpose Financial Statements Framework, the Board 
discloses all employees who receive remuneration equal to or 
greater than the base executive remuneration level.

p)   unrecognised contractual commitments and 
contingent assets and liabilities 
commitments include operating arrangements arising from 
contractual or statutory sources and are disclosed at their 
nominal value. contingent assets and contingent liabilities are 
not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, but are 
disclosed by way of a note and, if quantifiable, are measured 

at nominal value. unrecognised contractual commitments 
and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of 
gSt recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian 
taxation office. if gSt is not payable to, or recoverable 
from, the Australian taxation office, the commitments and 
contingencies are disclosed on a gross basis.

q) leases
the Board leases premises for its administrative and 
operating activities. the lease is classified as a non-
cancellable operating lease and lease payments are included 
as expenditure in equal instalments over the accounting 
periods covered by the respective lease term.

r)  Insurance
the Board has arranged through its brokers to insure all 
major risks of the Board. the excess payable under policies 
varies depending on each class of insurance held.

s)  Provisions
the Board has provided a training claim provision that 
represents the discounted value of the present obligation 
in relation to progressive training claims that fall within the 
financial year.

the discounted value reflects management’s assessment 
of the cost of servicing the claims discounted by probability 
of claim and attrition rates based on historic empirical data. 
changes to the number of registrants, funding rate, and 
discount rates impact the carrying amount of the provision.

t)  Reserves
the Board has provided for two reserves.

operational Risk Reserve – a reserve to meet operational 
risks involved during the course of business calculated using 
a number of assumptions addressing variability in revenue, 
expenditure and other events.

Strategic Reserve – a reserve to address any strategic 
needs that may arise which the Board considers warrant an 
allocation of funds calculated at a nominal value.

3 Financial Risk Management
the Board is exposed to a variety of financial risks, credit risk and 
liquidity risk.

the Board has non-interest bearing assets (cash on hand and 
receivables) and liabilities (payables) and interest bearing assets 
(cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets).

the Board has no significant concentration of credit risk.

investments are in the form of term deposits with approved 
banking institutions.

in relation to liquidity/funding risk, the continued existence of the 
Board in its present form, is dependent on government policy.

there are no fair value differences as carrying values approximate 
fair values and there is minimal exposure to interest rate or market 
risk due to the nature of the financial assets and liabilities held.

4 Industry levies

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Housing sector  7,026  7,213 

commercial sector  6,962  5,174 

civil sector  2,736  2,765 

Total  16,724  15,152 

5 other Income

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Sale of publications  48  66 

Sundry revenue  43  186 

Refund of payroll tax  -  213 

Total  91  465 

6 depreciation and Amortisation
the aggregate amounts of depreciation and amortisation expensed during the reporting period for each class of asset are as follows:

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Furniture and fittings  1  4 

computer equipment  16  18 

computer software  3  283 

office machines  3  8 

Motor vehicles  37  38 

leasehold improvements  2  2 

Total  62  353 

7 employee Benefits

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Salaries and wages  1,513  1,498 

Annual leave  120  121 

long Service leave  51  49 

employment on-costs-superannuation  139  136 

*employment on-costs-other  34  47 

Board fees  148  160 

Total  2,005  2,011 

*In 2014 an exemption to Payroll Tax was granted resulting in a refund of $219,000 for the period 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2013. The 
refund was applied as an offset payroll tax costs incurred in this financial year and the remainder was recognised as other income (Note 5).
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Remuneration of employees

the number of employees whose total remuneration was within the following bands:

2015 2014

number of employees number of employees

$191,500-$201,499 1 1

Total 1 1

the table includes all employees who received remuneration equal to or greater than the base executive remuneration level during the 
year. Remuneration of employees reflects all costs of employment including salaries and wages, superannuation contributions, fringe 
benefits tax and any salary sacrifice benefits. the total remuneration for these employees was $197,000 ($193,000).

Remuneration of directors

total income received, or due and receivable during the financial year by directors was $148,000 ($160,000).

2015 2014

number of directors number of directors

$0-$9,999 12 5

$10,000-$19,999 9 10

$20,000-$29,999 - 1

Total 21 16

In accordance with the Premier and Cabinet Circular No. 016, government employees did not receive any remuneration for board/
committee duties during the financial year.

8 Supplies and Services

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

telecommunication and it expenses  151  138 

legal costs  19  32 

insurances  21  19 

consultancy and professional services  136  172 

general administration and consumables  119  155 

other  35  56 

Total  481  572 

9 Transactions with South Australian government
in 2014, an exemption to Payroll tax was granted resulting in a refund of $219,000 for the period 1 July 2008 to 31 december 2013 from 
Revenue SA.

in 2015 $103,000 was paid to the department of education and childhood development (decd) representing a salary contribution for 
resources supplied by decd for the doorways2construction program.

Payments to tafe SA of $154,000 (2015) and $148,000 (2014) were made, representing training claims for which trainees were the end 
beneficiary.

10 Auditor’s Remuneration

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Audit fees paid or payable to the Auditor-general’s department relating to the 
audit of financial statements

 39  38 

No other services were provided by the Auditor-General’s Department.

11 Cash and Cash equivalents

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

cash at bank  369  168 

Bank deposits at call  1,800  614 

Total  2,169  782 

the cash at bank and deposits at call are interest bearing at average rates at 30 June 2015 1.31% (2.05%)

Interest rate risk 

cash on hand is non-interest bearing. deposits at call earn a floating interest rate, based on daily bank deposit rates.  
the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents represents fair value.

12 Receivables

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Current

Accrued levy revenue  4  63 

Accrued interest  97  200 

trade debtors  250  221 

less allowance for doubtful debts ( 12) ( 15) 

Sundry debtors  26  1 

Prepayments  37  37 

gSt receivables  18  22 

Total Current Receivables  420  529 

Interest rate and credit risk 

Receivables are raised for all levies, goods and services, for which payment has not been received. Receivables are normally settled 
within 30 days. trade receivables, prepayments and accrued revenues are non-interest bearing. other than recognised in the provision 
for doubtful debts, it is not anticipated that counterparties will fail to discharge their obligations. the carrying amount of receivables 
approximates net fair value due to being received on demand. in addition, there is no concentration of risk.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period  15  12 

increase/(decrease) in the provision ( 1)  14 

Amounts written off ( 2) ( 11) 

Carrying amount at the end of the period  12  15 
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13 other Financial Assets 
the short term investments of the Board at balance date comprise:

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Current investments

Westpac term deposits  6,000  7,000 

AnZ term deposits  4,026  4,500 

AnZ V2 Plus  64  63 

Total Current Investments  10,090  11,563 

the deposits are held to maturity and have a weighted average interest rate of 3.41% (4.00%). 

the carrying amount is equal to the net fair value.

14 Maturity Analysis of Financial Assets

2015 Carrying Amount / Fair Value < 1 year 1-5 years >5 years

$,000 $,000 $,000 $,000

Financial assets

cash and cash equivalent  2,169  2,169  -  - 

Receivables (1)  124  124  -  - 

other financial assets  10,090  10,090  -  - 

Total financial assets  12,383  12,383  -  - 

2014 Carrying Amount / Fair Value < 1 year 1-5 years >5 years

$,000 $,000 $,000 $,000
Financial assets

cash and cash equivalent  782  782  -  - 

Receivables (1)  200  200  -  - 

other financial assets  11,563  11,563  -  - 

Total financial assets  12,545  12,545  -  - 

(1) Receivables amounts disclosed here exclude amounts relating to statutory receivables and prepayments.

15 Property, Plant and equipment

a) Property, plant and equipment

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Furniture and fittings at cost (deemed fair value)  44  45 

less: accumulated depreciation ( 42) ( 42) 

  2  3 

office machines at cost (deemed fair value)  51  58 

less: accumulated depreciation ( 50) ( 55) 

  1  3 

computer equipment at cost (deemed fair value)  97  97 

less: accumulated depreciation ( 80) ( 67) 

  17  30 

Motor vehicles at cost (deemed fair value)  253  250 

less: accumulated depreciation ( 52) ( 78) 

  201  172 

leasehold improvements at cost (deemed fair value)  391  390 

less: accumulated depreciation ( 389) ( 386) 

  2  4 

Total property, plant and equipment  223  212 

b) Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment
the following table shows the movement of plant and equipment during the current reporting period.

2015 
Furniture & 

fittings
office 

machines
Computer 

equipment
Motor 

vehicles
leasehold 

improvements
Total 
2015

 $,000 $,000 $,000 $,000 $,000 $,000

gross value at 1 July 2014  45  58  97  250  390  840 

Plus: purchase of assets  -  1  4  141  -  146 

less: disposal of assets  - ( 8) ( 3) ( 139)  - ( 150) 

gross value as at 30 June 2015  45  51  98  252  390  836 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2014  41  56  66  79  387  629 

depreciation charge for the year  1  3  16  37  2  59 

less depreciation on disposal  - ( 8) ( 3) ( 64)  - ( 75) 

Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2015  42  51  79  52  389  613 

net book value as at 30 June 2015  3 -  19  200  1  223 

the following table shows the movement of plant and equipment during the reporting period ended 30 June 2014.

 2014 Furniture & 
fittings

office 
machines

Computer 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles

leasehold 
improvements

Total 
2014

 $,000 $,000 $,000 $,000 $,000 $,000
gross value at 1 July 2013  45  58  114  242  385  844 

Plus: purchase of assets  -  -  13  82  5  100 

less: disposal of assets  -  - ( 30) ( 74)  - ( 104) 

gross value as at 30 June 2014  45  58  97  250  390  840 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2013  38  47  78  76  384  623 

depreciation charge for the year  4  8  18  38  2  70 

less depreciation on disposal  -  - ( 29) ( 36)  - ( 65) 

Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2014  42  55  67  78  386  628 

net book value as at 30 June 2014  3  3  30  172  4  212 
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16 Intangible Assets

a) Intangible Assets:

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

computer software  1,690  1,689 

less: accumulated amortisation ( 1,681) ( 1,678) 

Total computer software  9  11 

Total intangible assets  9  11 

b) Reconciliation of Intangible assets

the following table shows the movement of intangible assets during the current reporting period.

computer software

gross value at 1 July  1,689  1,676 

Plus purchases  1  4 

transfer from work in progress  -  9 

gross value at 30 June  1,690  1,689 

Accumulated amortisation at 1 July  1,678  1,395 

Amortisation charge for the year  3  283 

Accumulated amortisation at 30 June  1,681  1,678 

net book value as at 30 June  9  11 

Work in progress

gross value at 1 July  -  7 

Plus purchases  -  2 

less: transferred to intangible Assets  - ( 9) 

gross Value at 30 June  -  - 

Total net book value as at June  9  11 

17 Payables

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Current:

trade creditors  82  142 

Accrued expenses  79  111 

Accrued training expenses  1,862  939 

employment on-costs  23  27 

Total Current  2,046  1,219 

non-current:

employment on-costs  15  14 

Total non-current  15  14 

Total Payables 2,061 1,233

Interest rate and credit risk 

creditors and accruals are raised for all amounts billed but not paid. Sundry creditors are normally settled within 30 days. employment  
on-costs are settled when the respective employee benefits that they relate are discharged. All payables are non-interest bearing. the 
carrying amount of payables approximates net fair value due to the amounts being payable on demand.

18 employee Benefits

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Current:

Annual leave  120  123 

Personal leave provision  46  45 

Accrued salaries and wages  38  35 

 204  203 

non-current:

long service leave  276  241 

 276  241 

the aggregate employee benefits and oncost liability recognised and included in 
the financial statements is as follows:   

current  227  230 

non-current  291  255 

 518  485 

AASB 119 contains the calculation methodology for long service leave liability. the actuarial assessment performed by the department  
of treasury and Finance has provided a set level of liability for the measurement of long service leave.

AASB 119 requires the use of the yield on long term commonwealth government bonds as the discount rate in the measurement of the 
long service leave liability. the yield on long term commonwealth government bonds has decreased from 3.5% (2014) to 3.0% (2015).

the net financial effect of the changes in the current financial year is an increase in the long service leave liability of $35,000 and employee 
benefit expense of $51,000. the impact on future periods is impracticable to estimate as the long service leave liability is calculated using 
a number of assumptions – a key assumption is the long-term discount rate.

the actuarial assessment performed by the department of treasury and Finance left the salary inflation rate at 4% for lSl liability. the 
salary inflation rate for annual leave and personal leave reduced from 3.0% to 1.4%. 

19 Provisions

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Provision for training claims  1,955  - 

Provision for Training Claims  1,955  - 

in 2014/2015 a provision was recognised for progressive training claims that are likely to fall within the year of balance date. no 
adjustment was made for the comparative period since it is impracticable to determine the provision amount due to the lack of sufficient 
and reliable information necessary to determine the required provision.
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20 Maturity Analysis of Financial liabilities

2015 Carrying Amount < 1 year 1-5 years >5 years

$,000 $,000 $,000 $,000

Financial liabilities

Payables (1)  1,956  1,956  -  - 

Provision for training claims  1,955  1,955  -  - 

Total financial liabilities  3,911  3,911  -  - 

2014 Carrying Amount < 1 year 1-5 years >5 years

$,000 $,000 $,000 $,000

Financial liabilities

Payables (1)  1,118  1,118  -  - 

Total financial liabilities  1,118  1,118  -  - 

(1) Payables amounts disclosed here exclude amounts relating to statutory payables.

21 unrecognised Contractual Commitments

operating lease commitments
commitments under non-cancellable leases at the reporting date are not recognised as liabilities in the financial report and are payable  
as follows:

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Within one year  125  121 

later than one year but not later than five years  549  10 

Total operating lease commitments  674  131 

the lease for office accommodation is a non-cancellable lease. With rental payable monthly in advance.

lease payments are subject to an annual increase of four percent.

Fixed term contractual employment
commitments under non-cancellable fixed term employment contracts at the reporting date are not recognised as liabilities in the financial  
report and are payable as follows:

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Within one year  762  791

later than one year but not later than five years  293  477

Total fixed term contractual employment commitments  1,055  1,268
 

22 events after the Reporting Period and Contingent Assets and liabilities
on Friday 26th June 2015, the Board decided to pursue an unpaid debt through legal remedy. the debt including fines and penalty interest  
amounts to $846,000. on Friday 31 July 2015, legal proceedings were initiated and the Project owner was served a statement of claim  
and legal summons. legal costs associated with this legal action will be incurred however cannot be estimated with certainty at this time.

A contingent Asset of $846,000 has been disclosed pending successful resolution.

23 Cash Flow Reconciliation

a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014

$,000 $,000

Statement of Financial Position  2,169  782 

Statement of cash Flows  2,169  782 

b) Reconciliation of net Surplus to net Cash provided by operating Activities

net Result ( 3,005) ( 3,019) 

Add/less non-cash items

depreciation and amortisation expense  62  353 

Movement in assets and liabilities

increase / (decrease) in employee benefits  36  71 

decrease / (increase) in receivables  4  390 

decrease / (increase) in accrued interest  103  69 

increase / (decrease) in provision  1,955  - 

increase / (decrease) in payables ( 95) ( 5) 

(decrease) / increase in training liability  923  202 

net cash (used in) / provided by operating Activities ( 17) ( 1,939) 

24 Consultants Fees
the number and dollar amount of consultancies paid/payable (included in supplies and services) that fell within the following bands:

no 2015 no 2014

$,000 $,000

Below $10,000 10  28 14  35 

Between $10,000 and $50,000 2  28 1  21 

Total paid/payable to the consultants engaged 12  56 15  56 

25 Related Party disclosures

a) directors of the Construction Industry Training Board
the directors of the construction industry training Board for the period from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 were:

Mary Marsland / gay thompson 
chairperson  
(appointed 14 August 2014)

Romana Hutchinson /  
christine Harrison 
(appointed 14 August 2014)

John laird /  
Rebecca Pickering  
(appointed 14 August 2014)

douglas Buchanan

natasha Hemmerling Phillip Sutherland denise Janek gary Henderson

Sandra Jaffer Martin o’Malley Robert Stewart

Mary Marsland, Romana Hutchinson, and John laird’s appointments expired 25 July 2014

b) Transactions with the directors – related entities
during the year training funds were allocated to associated entities of the directors of the construction industry training Board. Such 
transactions were within terms and conditions no more favourable than those available on similar transactions with other parties.   
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2014/2015 citB excellence  
in training Award Winners 

Baoliang li
TAPS excellence in Training Award 
winner with Steve larkins

nathan Allen 
MBA CAMS Apprentice of the year 
Award winner with Steve larkins

Phillip Crouch 
CCF Harry Wauer Memorial Award 
winner May 2015 with len Warren.

Robert Berno
Maxima Australian Apprentice of the  
year in Construction Award winner 
with Adam Warchol

Adam Parfitt 
HIA Stratco Awards 2014 CITB 
excellence in Training Award winner 
with len Warren.

Phillip Crouch 
CCF Harry Wauer Memorial Award 
winner

other 2014/2015 CITB excellence in Training Award Winners:

Matthew Turner  MPASA gold Medal Winner

Fahri Somuncu SMgT Building and Construction Industry Award

Sam Spridis gTe Mt gambier Building Trades Apprentice of the year

Jack Chapman PeeR VeeT

list of acronyms

ABS Australian Bureau of Statistics

ACT construction industry training Fund Act (1993)

AFCITF Australian Forum of construction industry training Funds

ATP Annual training Plan

ATS Apprenticeship and traineeship Support Program

AWdI  Aboriginal Workforce development initiative

BIM Building information Modelling

CITF Act  construction industry training Fund Act (1993)

CPSISC construction and Property Services industry Skills council

CW construction Worker

d2C doorways2construction

deCd  department for education and child development

dSd department of State development

elTRC  entry level training Reference committee

FAC Finance and Audit committee

gTo group training organisation

IAB industry Advisory Body

JSAC Joint Sector Advisory committee

nCVeR  national centre for Vocational education Research

nRAH new Royal Adelaide Hospital

RTo Registered training organisation

SACe South Australian certificate of education

TAlAS  training and levy Administration System

TC training contract or contract of training

TPC training Policy committee

VeT Vocational education and training

WHS Workplace Health & Safety
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